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Management philosophy and

CSR charters

| Management philosophy ‘

To prosper together

with the region

To satisfy all of
our customers

To provide our staff
with stability
and opportunities

CSR charters

From the aspect of the economy
and social contributions
(the meaning of our existence)

From the aspect of our customers
(customer satisfaction)

From the aspect of our employees
(employee satisfaction)

Message from Management

We thank you for your kind support to Yamagata Bank.

Yamagata Bank's main geographical focus is Yamagata
Prefecture, located 300 kilometers north of Tokyo, a three-
hour train ride on the Yamagata Shinkansen line. It has a
population of about 1.11 million. The largest city, Yamagata
City, is located near Sendai (in Miyagi Prefecture), the
largest city in the northern Honshu region, and the two
cities have had close, interconnected economic ties from
ages past.

Yamagata Prefecture is well known for its rice production
and fruit orchards but it has a vibrant manufacturing base
as well, ranging from traditional crafts to electronics.
Thanks to lots of diligent people, Yamagata has a reputa-
tion for excellence in quality in both agriculture and
manufacturing.

The Pacific coast of northern Honshu was hit hard by the
Great East Japan Earthquake of 2011 and recovery efforts
from the natural disaster continue to this day. The Sea of
Japan coastal area incurred only light damage and
Yamagata Prefecture has rebuilt its transportation
infrastructure through expressway construction and
improvements in air transportation links with major cities
throughout Japan.

Japan's economic recovery strengthened in fiscal year
2016 centering on the corporate sector. Exports gradually
improved due to the global economic recovery and corpo-
rate profits were strong, helped by the weaker yen. Yamagata
Prefecture's economy improved as well with increasing
consumption and investment compared with the previous
year.

On the other hand, the population is trending downward due
to the declining birthrate and aging population. In order to
realize sustainable prosperity in regional areas, efforts must
be made to establish next-generation industries. (For
example, transforming agriculture into an advanced,
modernized industry, promoting tourism, and the practical
application to industry of the latest, state-of-the-art
research.) We are pursuing activities that encourage these
developments.

Many regional financial institutions are facing a difficult
business environment due to the long-term low-interest
environment. One cause is the Bank of Japan's continua-
tion of its qualitative and quantitative monetary easing
policy along with both short and long-term interest rate
operations. Given these conditions, it is likely that the
future will bring even more strategic realignment and
increased competition. Not only are major regional banks

with operations spanning across prefectural lines consoli-
dating but even regional banks located wholly within a
single prefecture are consolidating as well.

The current fiscal year is an important one for Yamagata
Bank. It is the final year of our 18th long-term management
plan (fiscal 2015-2017). We have a responsibility to show
results in relation to the tasks set forth in the plan. We
continue to expand efforts toward increasing our workforce
productivity and to strengthen our profitability. In addition,
we are making efforts to strengthen our business manage-
ment framework and to provide high quality financial
services. (This includes, for example, our CSR activities
and our handling of matters involving the financial regula-
tory authorities.)

In April 2016, we marked the 120th anniversary of the
founding of our bank, thanks to your kind support. Please
allow us to express to you once again our appreciation for
your support. Looking ahead toward the next ten years, we
shall endeavor to further raise our corporate value. We
believe that Yamagata Bank, located as we are in
Yamagata Prefecture, will prove its true value by playing a
leadership role in furthering regional revitalization and the
prosperity of Yamagata Prefecture.

Thank you for your ongoing encouragement and support.

Kichishige Hasegawa
President

R



The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Five-Year Financial Highlights

Yen:In millions except per stock data and percentages
U.S.dollars:In thousands except per stock data and percentages

18th long-term management plan (fiscal 2015-2017)
Yamagin Innovation Plan Il

Aiming to be the overwhelmingly no. 1 bank by bearing
responsibility for the development of Yamagata

Years ended March 31

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2017

For the fiscal year:

. . . - (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
The management philosophy of Yamagata Bank, which has as our corporate social responsibility charter, and we - -
been maintained throughout the long history of the Bank, is consider that meeting our corporate social responsibility is Ordinary iNCOME ««vvereemrvvrrresiiieeis ¥ 45,886 ¥ 45252 ¥ 45970 ¥ 45738 ¥ 47927 $ 409,005
based on three aspects, namely the region, our customers the management of the Bank. Ordinary eXpENSEs -+ ooorrrrrrirriin 37,802 34,504 33,250 34,534 38,145 336,949
and our employees, and has the common ideal as that of Under the 18th long-term management plan, various Income before iNCome taxes -+«««««--rvvvveeneerninnn 8,034 10,623 12,448 11,067 9,710 71,617
the corporate social responsibility of the modern manage- business problems will be solved by regarding the manage- Net income attributable to owners of parent ------ 5,473 6,714 7,483 6,331 5,452 48,786
ment. Therefore, we have set the management philosophy ment philosophy as CSR charters.
At the fiscal year-end
i Tatal assets ---ccvvvvrriiiii ¥ 2,61 2,784 ¥ 2’503‘672 ¥ 2’466‘878 ¥ 2’379’31 0 ¥ 2’31 2’41 3 $ 23’288’921
Two major targets i Loans and bills discounted -----.weveeeneeen: 1674250 1,584,509 1470267 1409351 1326192 14923351
Revtl’:allzat{on of Increase in earnings Securl-tles- s 717,552 741,165 821,614 854,183 771,994 6,395,870
e region : (growth of the bank) Total Habilities <« vvveereriei 2,459,270 2,347,728 2,312,184 2,237,627 2,178,564 21,920,581
(growth of the region) DEPOSIES  +eeveveereameameemeaieaieaieaieaieeeeaieeeeeeeans 2,180,460  2,075390 2,036,421 2019521 1977246 19435430
Total Net assets «-«--vvvvererernei 153,514 155,944 154,694 141,682 133,849 1,368,339
Amounts per stock (Yen) (US.dollars)
Outline Of the . . - - Cash diVIdENdS  «-cveverreremmememmeiiniiiieieanenennes ¥ 7.00 ¥ 7.00 ¥ 6.00 ¥ 6.00 ¥ 6.00 $ 0.06
ma ] or issues Expansion of the size Raising productivity Net income attributable to owners of parent.----...- 33.55 41.08 4562 37.14 31.98 0.30
Strive to increase top-line Raise the productivity of each Diluted net iNCOME --+-xevveererrerrnsrnireeene 29.94 36.67 41.00 - - 0.27
earnings and to raise the volume execut_ive and each of the staff by NET ASSETS ++vcvvvreerrrtiiitiiiiiiiiiiiiaeeans 941.02 904.81 900.00 789.89 74720 8.39
share. reforming the work style.
Ratios: 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Strengthening of the Enhancement of Generating the value of Capital adequacy ratio (Domestic standard) - 12.11% 12.77% 13.24% 13.92% 13.92%
corporate brand and CS human resource capacity the region
Establish the Yamagata Bank Brand Use diverse human resources, foster Bear responsibility for the growth of . : f _ o
and raise its corporate value through and strengthen practical human the region by making further efforts Note : U.S. dollars represent transactions, for the convenience of readers, at ¥112.19=U.S.$1.00 the rate prevailing on March 31, 2017
behavioral reform of the executive resources and promote a good for the revitalization of the region.
and the staff. work-life balance. Net income attributable to owners of parent | Total net assets
(Millions of yen) (Billions of yen)
© (e}
2 T5) Te}
® 3 To) o
. @ © £ - e}
final finishing of the 9 5 =
innovation plan b ) ” N ®
. _p y Image reformation Capability* 2 i
implementing measures - i
by attaching importance to
six keywords. IT strategy Growth strategy
* Capability:Organizational capacity and the strengths that the company has as a whole.
Using our Yamagin Innovation Plan lll, the Basic policies in three years (fiscal 2015-2017)
- : 1.We will proactively lead the revitalization of the ] _
18th long-term management plan, which region by means such as fostering new industries and The graph contains consolideted data. 13 14 15 16 17 13 14 15 '16 "7

started in April 2015, we will put our
management philosophy into practice
aiming for two major targets:
revitalization of the region (growth of the
region) and increase in earnings (growth
of the bank).

generating more employment.

2.We will raise our absolute corporate value by
expanding the business foundations, as a bank rooted
in the region.

3.We will resolve structural problems and change our
business to materialize sustainable growth based on
the “innovation” (everlasting aspiration) realized in the
16th and 17th long-term plans.



Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.
and its consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31,
2017, and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in net assets,
and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing
and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara-
tion and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo-
sures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finan-
cial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial
statements is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, but in
making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's prepa-
ration and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appro-
priateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd. and its consolidated subsid-
iaries as at March 31, 2017, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.S. dollars,
presented for the convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been properly translated on the basis described in Note 2.

June 23, 2017
Yamagata, Japan

Zanel & Youmg Spinhibon LLC

Review of Operations
The Conditions of Consolidated Accounts

The general situa-
tion of this term
(from April 1, 2016
to March 31, 2017)

Deposits and negotiable certifi-

cates of deposit

As a result of our efforts to offer
products that respond to the diverse
requirements to our customers, the
year-end consolidated balance of
deposits and negotiable certificates of
deposit rose by ¥100.9 billion during
the fiscal year to ¥2,296.1 billion.
Both of deposits by personal
customers and cooperate customers
increased.

Deposited financial assets

The year-end consolidated balance of
deposited financial assets rose by ¥
10.4 billion during the year to ¥366.6
billion, due to reasons such as a
satisfactory increase in personal
insurance.

Loans

The year-end consolidated balance of
loans rose by ¥89.7 billion to ¥
1,674.2 billion. This was realized
because the Bank proactively
responded to the demand for funds by
local companies and local public
entities, and made constant efforts
increase loans to personal customers,
mainly focusing on housing loans.

Securities

As a result that we invested assets by
attaching importance to safely and
liquidity and paying close attension to
investment conditions and make

trends, the year-end consolidated
balance of securities declined by ¥
23.6 billion to ¥717.5 billion.

Profit and loss

The consolidated ordinary income
increased by ¥633 million on the
previous year to ¥45,886 million,
mainly because of a increase in gains
on sales of bonds although fund
investment earnings and gains on
sales of stocks and other securities are
decreased. The consolidated ordinary
expenses increased by ¥3,297 million
on the previous year to ¥¥37,802
million, mainly because of a increase
in loss on sales of bonds and
provision of reserve for possible loan
losses although decrease in interest
expenses. As a results, the consoli-
dated ordinary income (net) decreased
by ¥2,663 million during the year to ¥
8,083 million, and the consolidated
net income attributable to owners of
parent decreased by ¥1,240 million
during the year to ¥5,473 million.

Results by business sector

In banking business, the ordinary
income for the consolidated fiscal year
was ¥39,667 million, which was ¥570
million more than that for the previous
fiscal year; the segment profit the
consolidated fiscal year was ¥7,254
million, which was ¥2,679 million less
than that for the previous fiscal year.

In the leasing business, the ordinary
income for the consolidated fiscal year
was ¥4,930 million, which was ¥40
million more than that for the previous
year; the segment profit for consoli-
dated fiscal year was ¥111 million,
which was ¥79 million less than that
for the previous fiscal year.

In other business sectors, the ordinary
income for the consolidated fiscal year

was ¥2,442 million, which was ¥26
million more than that for the previous
fiscal year; the segment profit for the
consolidated fiscal year was ¥650
million, which was ¥16 million more
than that for the previous fiscal year.

Cash flow

Cash flow from operating activities
was positive at ¥35.8 billion, due to
increases in deposits and decreases in
call loans, etc.

Cash flow from investing activities was
positive at ¥14.9 billion, because the
inflow generated by the sales of securi-
ties, etc., exceeded the outflow
generated by acquisition of securities
etc.

Cash flow from financing activities was
negative at ¥4.2 billion, because of
outflow generated by acquisition of
stocks of subsidiaries and payments of
dividends, etc.

As a result of the above, the year-end
consolidated balance of cash and cash
equivalents increased by ¥46.6 billion
during the year to ¥149.4 billion.



The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets

Cash and due from banks (NOtE Q) ««w-vrrvrevrrresiriii
Call loans and bills purchased
Monetary claims bought ...........................................................................
Trading Securities (NOLE 5) ««ww-rrvrreommrriii
Securities (Note 5and 11) «+-oooveeeeeeinnnns
Loans and bills discounted (Note 4) ---
Foreign exchange (Note 4) «---wvvvvvveveeeenees
Other assets (NOTE 1) vrevrermeeiie i
Tangible fixed assets
Buildings (Note 10)
Land (NOLE B)  «vvvereessmmrrrrreeeiiiiiiit ettt
COoNSEraction iN PrOGIESS ««ww+ rwrrrrrrrrsirsiisie
Other tangible fixed assets (Note 10)
Intangible fixed assets
Software ««-oveeeerrirrir
Other intangible fixed @SSEetS ««-«-ww-wrrrrermireei
Net defined benefit assets (NOte 17) «voveererrrrmmi
Deferred tax assets (Note 15) oo
Customer's liabilities for acceptances and guarantees --««+««++«w+sweeveeneeens
Reserve for possible 108N [0SSES -++««w--xwrrerrrremmmrraiiiieiii i
TOLAl ASSELES  +vvvvveerrrrrrnetete ittt

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Deposits (Note 1 1) ....................................................................................
Negotiable certificae of deposits
Call money and bills SOl e
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 11) «--ooeeeeevviiinnnieens
Borrowed money (Note 11)
Foreign exchange .......................................................................................
Bonds with stock acquiSition rights «««««« - oooveeeremmmii
Other liabilities
Reserve for bonuses t0 dir@Ctors «----«wweoovemvmmmieeniiii
Liabilities for retirement benefits (Note 17) oo
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits «««««+oeerveereeee

Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for 10SSeS 0N CONTINGENCIES  ++++++rrvrrrrrrrrrrenniiiiiiii
Reserve for point service PIOZIAIM  -evevsereermminiiie ettt
Reserve for loss due to returning interests -
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 15) ...............................................................
Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land (Note 6) -«
Acceptance and guarantees
Total lIabilities -« recreeerrerreririi

Net Assets

Shareholders' equity (Note 7 & 19)
COMMON STOCK ++e++vererrmerrnertnetiiettiee ettt et e e e e
Cap|ta| Surp|u5 .......................................................................................
Retained earnings .................................................................................
Treasury stock
Total shareholders' EQUITY  ++vremreemee e
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale (Note 5)
Deferred gain (l0ss) on hedging inStruments -+« ceeeeeene.
Revaluation of land (NOtE B) «+«w+evrererrmreniiiiiiiii
Retirement benefits liability adjustments -«
Total accumulated other comprehensive iINCoOME ««-«««xxxvvvvremmmmmiiiiiii
NON-CONtrolling  INTErEStS  «rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrri
Total NEL ASSELS  +rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrreeee e
Total liabilities and NEt ASSELS +w««++rrrrrrerrrrrerrmmirriiietiiiia et

2017

(Millions of yen)

2016

(Millions of yen)

2017

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 153,056
8,377
5,648

22
717,552
1,674,250
979
22,656
14,543
3,617
9,175
30
1,719
1,926
1,716
210

940

291
19,615
(7,077)

¥ 106,159

15,149

7,602

28

741,165

1,584,509

1,236

21,379

13,884

3,672

8,789

111

1,411

1,633

1,417

216

112

264

17,019
(6,472)

$ 1,364,264
74,672
50,345

204
6,395,870
14,923,351
8,726
201,950
129,628
32,247
81,782
271
15,325
17,171
15,295
1,875
8,387
2,595
174,838
(63,086)

¥ 2,612,784

¥ 2503672

$ 23,288,921

¥ 2,180,460
115,701
11,219
45,126
53,245
53
11,219
16,327
22

47

2

24

47

226

35

62
4,507
1,324
19,615

¥ 2,075,390
119,845
15,211
35,130
48,088
38
11,268
16,700
25

47

275

55

220

71
7,012
1,325
17,019

$ 19,435,430
1,031,301
100,000
402,235
474,605
479
100,000
145,530
200

419

22

214

418
2,017
317

561
40,180
11,808
174,838

¥ 2,459,270

¥ 2,347,728

$ 21,920,581

¥ 12,008 ¥ 12,008 $ 107,037
10,215 4,934 91,058
116,853 112,612 1,041,568
(3,171) (2,976) (28,266)
135,906 126,578 1,211,397
18,824 24,111 167,789
(2,578) (3,431) (22,987)

1,188 1,182 10,594

24 (562) 214

17,457 21,300 155,610

149 8,066 1,331

¥ 153514 ¥ 155944 $ 1,368,339

¥ 2,612,784

¥ 2503672

$ 23,288,921

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Consolidated Statement of Income

Ordinary INCOME@ oo

INTEIEST INCOME v vvrrrmrne ettt
Interest on loans and diSCOUNTS -« reerrrrremmmeneriiii s
Interest and dividends on securities -
Interest on call loans and bills bought ----
Interest on deposits with banks — --+---eeeeeee
OFNEE TNTEIEST -+ vvvvrvrrrrrnernetie ittt

Fees and commissions

Other operating income

Other INCOME «+« vvrrrrrrmrrerariiiiieiieieens

Ordinary Expenses ...........................................................................

Interest Expense ----eeveeeeee
Interest on deposits
Interest on negotiable certificate of depPOSIts -++- rrrwvrrereeres
Interest on call money and Dills SOId -« vveermrrr
Interest on payables under securities lending transsaction  ---------
Interest on borrowings and rediSCoOUNtS <« oveeerrrmmimnnni
Other INTEreSt -+« -vvvrerrrrrmererieiiaiieiiiieeieinns

Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYMENTS  ««-xvrervrrsrreirsii

Other operating EXPEINISE ++rvvreeerree ettt ettt

General and administrative EXPENSES  ««-«wxo e

Other EXPIBINISES +++evsnrrersses sttt
Provision on allowance for loan losses -+

Ordinary Income (Net) .....................................................................

Extraordinary 107000 11 = TR T TR T T P
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Extraordinary JOSSES  «vrervcerremrrumuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Loss on disposal of non-current @ssets oo
|mpairment loss (Note 12) .....................................................................

Income before income taxes -

Income taxes-Current ««««««ooovvveeeeeiees
Income taxes-deferred (Note 15)
Total INCOME TAXES :coveerereremtarmtiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis e sniaaaas

Net INCOME -+ oo

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income attributable to owners of parent -«

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

INET INGOIMIE - vvverernt ettt e e e e e e e aaes

Other comprehensive income (NOte 13) «woeeererermis
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale -
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments -+« e,
Revaluation Of 1and  «oocreorrrermem
Retirement benefits liability adjustments ««-------oeoo-o

COMPreNEnSIVE INCOME  ++ververemrrmeeaie s
Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of parent -+ .
Comprehensive Income attributable to non-controlling interests -----------

2017 2016 2017
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)
¥ 45,886 ¥ 45,252 $ 409,005
25,457 26,208 226,918
17,946 18,403 159,966
7,269 7,617 64,800
130 51 1,160
9 11 87
101 124 903
7,671 7,669 68,377
9,624 7,053 85,784
3,132 4,321 27,925
11 22 100
3,121 4,298 27,824
37,802 34,504 336,949
2,480 2,730 22,111
1,080 1,297 9,635
100 150 895
17 25 154
139 76 1,245
82 81 731
1,060 1,099 9,450
2,301 2,091 20,510
8,266 6,094 73,683
22,281 22,281 198,604
2,472 1,306 22,039
1,673 585 14,917
798 721 7,121
8,083 10,747 72,056
0 - 0
0 - 0
49 124 438
49 96 438
— 27 —
8,034 10,623 71,617
3,081 3,548 27,466
(720) (117) (6,419)
2,361 3,431 21,047
5,673 7,191 50,570
200 477 1,784
¥ 5,473 ¥ 6,714 $ 48,786
¥ 5,673 ¥ 7,191 $ 50,570
(3,859) (4,950) (34,400)
(5,297) (2,751) (47,222)
852 (585) 7,597
— 65 0
586 (1,678) 5,224
1,814 2,240 16,169
1,615 1,762 14,399
198 478 1,770

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 7



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Shareholders' equity

For the year ended March 31, 2017

Balance as April 1, 2016 +-reeeeeeerernnnnn.
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends «-:-:seceereeeeraeininennenn.

Net income attributable to owners
of parent .......................................

Acquisition of treasury stocks «--«ceeee-
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries ---
Reversal of land revaluation «««-«--«++-.

Changes in items other than

shareholders’ equity items

in the consolidated fiscal year ------+----
(net amounts)

Tota| ................................................
Balance as of March 31, 2017

For the year ended March 31, 2017

Ba|ance as Apr|| 1’ 2016 .....................
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash DiVidendS ..............................

Net income attributable to owners
of parent

Acquisition of treasury stocks -------e---
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries ---
Reversal of land revaluation -+«+++++++---

Changes in items other than

shareholders’ equity items

in the consolidated fiscal year ----++++---
(net amounts)

TOf@l ocereeecessostastnttasiiiiiiiiiuniiianiaiians
Balance as of March 31, 2017

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Balance as Apr|| 1’ 2015 .....................
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends cceeeeerrreeeieiciiiiinnnnne.

Net income attributable to owners
of parent

Acquisition of treasury stocks
Disposition of treasury stocks
Reversal of land revaluation «««+-«--«ce---

Changes in items other than

shareholders’ equity items

in the consolidated fiscal year ««---------
(net amounts)

Tota' ................................................
Balance as of March 31, 2016 «+-c-ceeeveee

8 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Millions of yen)

Common stock

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury stock Total shareholders'

equity

12,008 ¥ 4934 ¥ 112,612 ¥ (2,976) ¥ 126,578
(1,225) (1,225)

5,473 5,473

(194) (194)

5,281 5,281

(6) (6)

- 5,281 4,241 (194) 9,328
12,008 ¥ 10,215 ¥ 116,853 ¥ (3,171) ¥ 135,906
Shareholders' equity (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)

Common stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Treasury stock Total sg:lrjir;olders'
107,037 $ 43980 % 1,003,765 $ (26,531) $ 1,128,252
(10,925) (10,925)

48,786 48,786
(1,735) (1,735)

47,077 47,077
(57) (57)

- 47,077 37,803 (1,735) 83,145
107,037 § 91,058 § 1,041,568 $ (28,266) $ 1,211,397

Shareholders' equity

(Millions of yen)

Common stock

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury stock Total shareholders

equity

12,008 ¥ 4934 ¥ 106,816 ¥ (2,972) ¥ 120,787
(980) (980)

6,714 6,714
(@) (4)

62 62

5,796 (4) 5,791

12,008 ¥ 4934 ¥ 112,612 ¥ (2,976) ¥ 126,578

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Millions of yen)

Net unrealized

holding gain Deferred gain Revaluation Retirement benefits  Total accumulated Non-controlling  Total net
For the year ended March 31, 2017 on se(?urigties ('°?s) on hedging of land libilty ofher comprehensive interests assets
available for sale instruments adjustments income
Balance as April 1, 2016 «-eeeeeerennnnnnnn ¥ 24111 ¥  (3,431) ¥ 1,182 ¥ (562) ¥ 21,300 ¥ 8,066 ¥ 155944
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends «:cceeeereesiiiiiiiiiiiii (1 ,225)
Net income attributable to owners
of parent ....................................... 5’473
Acquisition of treasury stocks ««-----+---+ (194)
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries -:- 5,281
Reversal of land revaluation ----++++--+---- (6)
Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year «+-«--+++--- (5,287) 852 6 586 (3,842) (7,916) (11,759)
(net amounts)
Tota| ................................................ (5,287) 852 6 586 (3,842) (7’91 6) (2,430)
Balance as of March 31, 2017 ¥ 18824 ¥ (2578) ¥ 1,188 ¥ 24 ¥ 17457 ¥ 149 ¥ 153514

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)

Net unrealized Deferred gain Revaluati Retirement benefits ~ Total accumulated Non-controlli Total net
For the year ended March 31, 2017 holding gain - os5) o pedging e HaUON liablity other comprehensive O conwoling - fotaine
on securities . of land diustment ) interests assets
available for sale instruments adjustments income
Balance as April 1, 2016 «:ceceeereeeeeenees $ 214918 $ (30,584) $ 10536 $ (5,010) $ 189,859 $ 71,896 $ 1,390,007
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends ccceeeeeerreeeeeiiiiiiinnnn. (10,925)
Net income attributable to owners
of parent ....................................... 48,786
Acquisition of treasury stocks «-------ee- (1,735)
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries --- 47,077
Reversal of land revaluation ««-«««+-----+-- (57)
Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year ««+-««+---+ (47,129) 7,597 57 5,224 (34,249) (70,564) (21,667)
(net amounts)
TOtal covceeeveerencanenenneiiniiiiiiieiieieaaea, (47,129) 7,597 57 5,224 (34,249) (70,564) (21,667)
Balance as of March 31, 2017 -+--ceeeeeveees $ 167,789 $ (22987) $§ 10,594 § 214 $§ 155610 §$ 1,331 $ 1,368,339

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Millions of yen)

Net unrealized

Deferred gain Retirement benefits T

otal accumulated

For the year ended March 31, 2016 holding gain (55) on hedging Revaluation liability other comprehensive Non-controlling  Total net
on securities inst h of land diustments ) interests assets
available for sale Instruments aajustments Income
Balance as April 1, 2015 «cceeeeeeveeeiennnee. ¥ 26863 ¥ (2,845) ¥ 1,179 ¥ 1,116 ¥ 26,314 ¥ 7,593 ¥ 154,694
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends «eeeeeeerreeeneiiiiiiiiiiin. (980)
Net income attributable to owners
of parent ....................................... 6’714
Acquisition of treasury stocks (4)
Disposition of treasury stocks ««-----ee-- -
Reversal of land revaluation «««-««+-«+-e-+ 62
Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year ------------ (2,752) (585) 2 (1,678) (5,014) 473 (4,541)
(net amounts)
TOtAl wevveereernrrerreeneereenieiieiieiieiiereaaas (2,752) (585) 2 (1,678) (5,014) 473 1,250
Balance as of March 31, 2016 -++++eevveeeeee ¥ 24111 ¥  (3,431) ¥ 1,182 ¥ (562) ¥ 21,300 ¥ 8,066 ¥ 155,944

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 9



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Income before income taxes
Depreciation
Loss on impairment of fixed assets
Reserve for possible loan losses
Reserve for directors' bonus
Assets for retirement benefits
Liabilities for retirement benefits
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits
Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan
Reserve for loss due to returning interests
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for losses on contingencies
Reserve for point service program
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss (gain) on investment securities
Foreign exchange gain, net
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificate of deposits
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings)
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding due from Bank of Japan)
Net decrease (increase) in call loans and bills purchased
Net increase (decrease) in call money and bills sold
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions
Net decrease (increase) in trading securities
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchange-assets
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchange-liabilities
Proceeds from fund management
Payments for finance
Other
Subtotal
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Proceeds from redemption of investment securities
Expenditure for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
Income from sale of tangible fixed assets
Expenditure for acquisition of intangible fixed assets
Income from sale of intangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Purchases of treasury stock
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (No.9)

1 0 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2017

(Millions of yen)

2016

(Millions of yen)

2017

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 8,034 ¥ 10,623 $ 71,617
970 1,253 8,646
604 138 5,392
(2) 3 (22)

14 (657) 133

0 4 0
(273) (39) (2,434)

24 - 214
(9) (7) (80)
(8) (23) (71)

5 6 48

35 — 317
(25,457) (26,208) (226,918)

2,480 2,730 22,111
(2,572) (3,621) (22,931)
176 74 1,569

49 96 438
(89,786) (114,309) (800,308)
105,106 39,043 936,864
(4,143) 16,733 (36,937)

5,182 1,199 46,191
(252) (306) (2,255)
8,693 21,499 77,492
(3,955) (24,641) (35,259)
10,044 10,031 89,527
5 11 49

79 (279) 712

15 (19) 138
25,658 26,282 228,706
(2,719) (2,711) (24,237)
988 815 8,812
38,989 (42,249) 347,529
(3,091) (3,858) (27,556)
0 6 4
35,898 (46,101) 319,977
(354,502) (207,039) (3,159,843)
308,247 244,592 2,747,546
63,228 37,526 563,584
(1,349) (1,145) (12,028)
15 141 135
(662) (914) (5,906)

14 8 131
14,990 73,169 133,620
(1,225) (980) (10,925)
(5) (5) (45)
(194) (4) (1,735)
(2,819) — (25,131)
(4,245) (990) (37,837)
0 0 2
46,644 26,078 415,762
¥ 102,776 ¥ 76,698 $ 916,092
149,420 102,776 1,331,854

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2017

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata
Bank, Ltd. (the "Bank") have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of
Japan and its related accounting regulations and the Enforcement
Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the "Banking Law") , and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
("Japanese GAAP"), which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards.

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications have been made in the consolidated financial
statements issued for domestic purposes in order to present them in a
form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, the
notes to the consolidated financial statements include information
which is not required under accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

As permitted by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act amounts
of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals
shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements (both in
yen and U.S.dollars) do not necessarily agree with the sums of the
individual amounts.

2. U.S.Dollar Amounts

The Bank maintains its records and prepares its financial statements in
yen. Amounts in U.S.dollars are presented solely for the convenience
of readers outside Japan. The rate of 112.19=U.S.$1.00, the rate of
exchange in effect on March 31, 2017, has been used in translation.
The translation should not be construed as a representation that yen
could be converted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

3. Summary of Significant Acco-
unting Policies

a. Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Bank and its 7 subsidiaries, except for 2 subsidiaries
which are not consolidated due to its immateriality.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisition
and the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Immaterial goodwill is charged to income when
incurred.

b. Securities

Securities are classified into three categories: trading, held-to-maturity
bonds, or other securities (securities available for sale). Trading
account securities, which are purchased for trading purpose, are
carried at market value and held-to-maturity bonds are carried at
amortized cost. Marketable securities classified as securities available
for sale are carried at market value with changes in unrealized holding
gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, included directly in
net assets. Available-for-sale securities which do not have readily
determinable fair value are carried at cost. Cost of securities sold is
determined by the moving average method.

c. Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are stated at fair market value.

d. Tangible fixed assets

The Bank recognizes depreciation by the straight-line method applicable
to each specific category of assets. The useful lives of buildings and
equipment are summarized as follows:

Buildings : 2 to 50 years  Equipment : 2 to 15 years

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets of the consolidated subsidiaries
is mainly computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of respective assets.

e. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are depreciated by the straight-line method. The
Bank's software, which is used in-house, is depreciated based on the
estimated period of use (mainly five years) at the Bank and at consoli-
dated subsidiaries.

f. Leased assets

Leased assets on finance lease transactions that do not transfer
ownership are depreciated over the useful life of assets, equal to the
lease term, by the straight-line method with zero residual value or,
where lease agreements stipulate guarantee of residual value, the
guaranteed residual value. The Bank leases certain vehicle, computer
equipment and other assets.

g. Foreign currency translation

Foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated into
yen equivalents at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date.

h. Reserve for possible loan loss

The reserve for possible loan losses of the Bank is provided in
accordance with internally established standards for write-offs and
reserve provisions. The reserve for possible loan losses on loans to
borrowers who are classified as substantially bankrupt or who are
legally bankrupt is provided based on the amount remaining after
deduction of the amounts expected to be recoverable from the
disposal of collateral and amounts recoverable under guarentees. In
addition, an allowance is provided for loans to borrowers who,
although not legally bankrupt, are experiencing serious difficulties and
whose failure is imminent. In such cases, a portion of this allowance is
provided based on the amount remaining after deduction of the
amounts expected to be recoverable from the disposal of collateral
and the amounts recoverable under guarantees, and the balance of the
allowance is provided after giving full consideration to the amount
which the borrower is deemed capable of repaying. In the case of all
other loans, the amount provided as an allowance is based on the
Bank's historical percentage of actual defaults over a specific fixed
period in the past.

The relevant departments assess the assets for all of the credit, based
on self-assessment standards for assets, and an independent asset
audit department audits the results of the assessments. We provide a
reserve described above based on the assessment results.

The reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the quality
of the Bank's total loan assets, applying the Bank's internally
established rules for the self-assessment of its assets.

i. Reserve for directors’ bonus

A reserve for bonuses to directors and corporate auditors is provided in
the amount accrued during the year, which is calculated based on the
estimated amount of future bonus payment to directors.

j- Employees' retirement benefits

For the calculation of employees’ retirement benefit obligation, the
estimated amount of employees' retirement benefits is attributed to
each period by the straight-line method.

Prior service cost is amortized as incurred, by the straight-line method
over a period (5years) which falls within the average remaining years
of service of the active participants in the plans.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized in the year following the year in
which the gain or loss is recognized, by the straight-line method over a
period (5years) which falls within the average remaining years of
service of the active participants in the plans.

Also, certain consolidated subsidiaries calculate the net defined
benefit liability and retirement benefit cost using the simplified method
which assumes the retirement benefit obligation to be equal to the
necessary payments of the voluntary retirement for all employees at
the fiscal year-end.

11
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k. Reserve for directors’ retirement benefits

A reserve for directors’ retirement benefits is provided in the amount
accrued during the year, which is calculated based on the estimated
amount of future retirement payments to directors.

|. Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan

A reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan is provided for the
expected stock payments due to points assigned to directors based on
the stock incentive plan, in order to prepare for the delivery of the
Bank’s stock through the board incentive BIP trust.

m. Reserve for losses on dormant deposit repayments

A reserve for losses on dormant deposit repayments which are derecog-
nized as liabilities is provided for the possible losses on the future
claims of repayments based on the historical repayments experience.

n. Reserve for losses on contingencies

A reserve for losses on contingencies is provided for future estimated
payments to the Credit Guarantee Corporations.

o. Reserve for point service program

A reserve for point service program relating to the points awarded by
the use of credit cards issued by consolidated subsidiaries is provided
in the amount deemed necessary based on the reasonable estimate of
expected future use of the points in order to prepare for the costs in
the event of future use.

p. Reserve for loss due to returning interests

A reserve for loss due to returning interests is provided for the possible
losses on the future claims of returning interests.

g. Leases

As lessor

Finance lease revenue and related cost of revenue are recorded when
the lease payment is received.

Investments in leased assets for finance lease transactions which do
not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee and were
entered into before April 1, 2008 was stated at the carrying value of
the relevant fixed assets at March 31, 2008 , pursuant to the
paragraph 81 of Implementation Guidance No.16, '"lmplementation
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Lease. If these lease transac-
tions had been retroactively accounted for as ordinary sale
transactions pursuant to paragraph 80 of the Guidance, income before
income taxes and minority interests would have increased by ¥0
million ($0 thousand) and ¥3 million for the year ended March 31,
2017 and 2016.

r. Hedge accounting

1.Interest rate risk hedges
The Bank uses deferral hedges described in "Accounting and
auditing for the application of financial instrument accounting
standards in banking" (Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accoun-
tants, Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 February 13, 2002,
referred to as Report No. 24 of the Industry Audit Committee) to
hedge interest rate risks generated by the Bank's financial assets
and liabilities. The effectiveness of hedges to offset market fluctua-
tions is assessed for each hedged item (for example, deposits and
loans) and its hedging instrument (such as interest rate swaps).
Concerning hedges to fix the cash flow, the Bank identifies hedged
items by grouping them based on interest rate indexes and on
interest rate revision periods in accordance with Report No. 24 of
the Industry Audit Committee, and specifies interest rate swaps as
hedging instruments. The Bank specifies hedges in such a way that
the major conditions of hedged items and hedging instruments are
almost the same, so we believe that our hedges are highly effective.
The Bank applies the exeptional method for interest rate swaps to
certain assets and liabilities.
2.Exchange rate fluctuation risk hedges

The hedge we use against exchange rate fluctuation risks, which are
generated by our financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies,
is the deferral hedge described in "Accounting and auditing for

transactions in foreign currencies, etc., in banking" (Japanese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Industry Audit Committee
Report No. 25 July 29, 2002, referred to as Report No. 25 of the
Industry Audit Committee). We assess the effectiveness of the hedge
by regarding currency swaps and foreign exchange swaps, which are
conducted to reduce or eliminate exchange rate fluctuation risks
generated by monetary claims and liabilities in foreign currencies,
etc., as hedging instruments and by checking whether or not we
have appropriate foreign currency positions for the hedging
instruments to meet the hedged items (monetary claims and
liabilities in foreign currencies, etc.).

s. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and due from the Bank of Japan.

t. Consumption tax and regional consumption tax

With respect to the Bank and the domestic consolidated subsidiaries,
all amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are
recorded exclusive of consumption tax and regional consumption tax.

u. Additional Information

1.Termination of directors' retirement benefits plan
As of the close of the 204th ordinary shareholders’ meeting, (the
"shareholders’ meeting"), held on June 23, 2016, the Bank passed
an abolishment of the directors' retirement benefits plan. Further, a
resolution was passed that for a director continuing on as a director
after the close of the shareholders meeting, all retirement benefits
accrued as of the close of the shareholders meeting shall be trun-
cated and paid out. The timing of the payout of truncated directors'
retirement benefit plan benefits shall be when the director leaves the
company. Accordingly, as of this consolidated fiscal year, the
outstanding balance of the "reserve for directors' retirement benefits
plan" was eliminated and the liability for the truncated payout
amount was recorded under "Other liabilities."

2.Regarding transactions relating to the stock payment of board
incentive plan-type "BIP trust"
The Bank has established a "Board incentive BIP trust" as of this
consolidated fiscal year. The Board incentive BIP trust is a board
incentive plan based on performance share and restricted stock
plans as seen in the United States. It is a form of a stock payment
type of board incentive plan delivered and paid out upon their retire-
ment, based on progress made toward performance targets and the
director's individual contribution, comprised of the delivery of the
Bank's stock and a payout in an amount equal to the cash conver-
sion price of the Bank's stock.
The Bank established a trust to hold treasury stock on behalf of
directors, the beneficiaries, who meet certain criteria. The trust
makes purchases from the stock market of such number of the
Bank's stocks as is expected will be delivered to a director in accor-
dance with the stock incentive plan.
Thereafter, in accordance with the stock incentive plan, points are
awarded to each director each fiscal year based upon progress
toward performance targets and the director's individual contribution.
Upon their retirement, the Bank's stock equivalent to 70% of the
cumulative total of points shall be delivered from the trust and as for
the remainder of the Bank's stock, the cash amount equal to the
cash conversion price of such the Bank's stock when converted into
cash by the trust shall be paid out from the trust.
As for the accounting treatment, the Bank has applied the "Practical
solution on handling of transactions on delivering the Bank's own
stock to employees, etc. through trusts" (PITF No. 30; dated March
26, 2015). The Bank's stock owned by the board incentive BIP trust
as of the end of this consolidated fiscal year has been recorded as
treasury stock in the net asset category of the consolidated balance
sheet marked at the trust's book value (not including incidental
costs). The recorded amount is 190 million yen, and the number of
stocks is 450,000.

Regarding the estimated costs for this consolidated fiscal year of the
above described board incentive plan, it has been applied as a
reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan.

3.Application of "Implementation guidance on recoverability of deferred
tax assets"

The "Implementation Guidance on Recoverability of Deferred Tax
Assets" (ASBJ Guidance No 26, March 28, 2016) is being applied
beginning with the current consolidated fiscal year.
4.Reserve for point service program

In the past, costs relating to the use of points granted to credit card
holders of consolidated subsidiaries were recognized when actual
payouts occurred. However, with the increasing significance of the
outstanding balance of point granted, starting from the end of the
current consolidated fiscal year, a reserve for point service program
relating to the points awarded to the credit card holders is provided
in the amount deemed necessary based on the reasonable estimate
of expected future use of the points in order to prepare for the costs
in the event of future use. As a result, ordinary income and current
net income before income taxes decreased by 35 million yen.

4. Loans and Bills Discounted

Loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures and delinquent loans
totaled ¥582 million ($5,187 thousand) and ¥14,040 million
($125,144 thousand), respectively, at March 31, 2017, and ¥1,051
million and ¥14,877 million, respectively, at March 31, 2016. A loan is
placed on non-accrual status when substantial doubt as to the collect-
ibility of its principal and interest is judged to exist, if payment is past
due for a certain period of time, or for other reasons.

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy represent non-accrual loans, after the
charge-offs of loans deemed uncollectible, to borrowers who are legally
bankrupt as defined in Article 96, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 3 and 4
of Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation Income Tax Law.
Delinquent loans are non-accrual loans other than loans to borrowers in
bankruptcy or loans on which interest payments have been deferred in
order to assist the restructuring of the borrowers.

Loans past due for 3 months or more totaled ¥23 million ($205
thousand) and ¥28 million at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Loans past due for 3 months or more are those whose principal or
interest payments are 3 months or more past due but are not included
in loans to borrower under bankruptcy procedures or delinquent loans.
Restructured loans totaled ¥3,697 million ($32,953 thousand) and
¥2,857 million at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Restruc-
tured loans are those on which the Bank has granted certain conces-
sions, such as a reduction of the contractual interest rate or principal
amount or a deferral of interest/principal payments, in order to assist the
restructuring of the borrowers. Excluded from restructured loans are

5. Securities

loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other non-accrual
loans, and loans past due for 3 months or more.

The total of loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other
non-accrual loans, loans past due for 3 months or more and restructured
loans amounted to ¥18,343 million ($163,499 thousand) and ¥18,814
million at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions in
accordance with "Treatment of Accounting and Auditing in Applying
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry"
issued by the JICPA Industry Audit Commitee Report No.24 issued on
February 13, 2002. The Bank has rights to sell or pledge accepted
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills discounted, documentary
bills and foreign exchange bought without restrictions. The face value of
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills, documentary bills acquired
at discount and foreign exchange bought at a discount was ¥7,432
million ($66,244 thousand) and ¥8,079 million as of March 31, 2017
and 20186, respectively.

Overdraft protection on current accounts and contracts for loan commit-
ments are agreements under which the Bank and the consolidated
subsidiaries are bound to extend loans up to a prearranged amount, at
the request of the customer, unless the customer is in breach of
contract. The unutilized balance of such contracts amounted to
¥567,645 million ($5,059,675 thousand) and ¥545,153 million as of
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, in which the balance of
contracts that have a term of one year or less or are unconditionally
cancelable at any time were ¥548,801 million ($4,891,710 thousand)
and ¥532,470 million as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Since many of these contracts are scheduled to expire without the
rights having been exercised, any unutilized balance in itself does not
necessarily affect the future cash flows of the Bank or its consolidated
subsidiaries. A provision is included in many of these contracts which
entitles the Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries to refuse the execu-
tion of such loans, or to reduce the maximum amount loaned under such
contracts when there is a change in the borrowers' financial situation, or
when there is the necessity to secure a claim, or when other similar
factors arise. In addition, the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries
obtain, if needed, real estate or securities as collateral at the time the
contracts are entered into and they subseqguently monitor the borrowers'
financial condition periodically based on, and in accordance with, the
procedures established. If deemed necessary, specific measures such
as amendments to the contracts are undertaken in order to control the
credit risk.

Trading securities, marketeble securities classified as held-to-maturity debt securities and other securities at March 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as

follows:

1.Trading securities

(as of March 31, 2017) Unrealized holding gain

charged to current

Unrealized holding gain
charged to current
operations operations

Trading securities

(as of March 31, 2016) Unrealized holding gain

charged to current
operations

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

(Millions of yen)

¥ 0 $ ¥ 0
2. Held-to-maturity bonds (as of March 31, 2017) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Type Carrying value Fair value Difference Carrying Value Fair value Difference

Fair value exceeding Japanese government bonds | ¥ — — |¥ - |$ — $ - |$ —
carrying value Municipal bonds — — — — — —
Short-term bonds - - - - - -

Corporate bonds 8,539 8,709 170 76,111 77,627 1,515

Other — — — — — —

Subtotal 8,539 8,709 170 76,111 77,627 1,515

Fair value not Japanese government bonds — — — — — —
exceeding carrying Municipal bonds — — — — — —
value Short-term bonds - - - - — —
Corporate bonds 587 579 (7) 5,232 5,160 (62)

Other — — — — — —
Subtotal 587 579 (7) 5,232 5,160 (62)

Total ¥ 9,127 ¥ 9,289 |¥ 162 | $ 81,353 $ 82,797 [$ 1,443

13



14

Held-to-maturity bonds (as of March 31, 2016)

(Millions of yen)

Type Carrying value Fair value Difference
Fair value exceeding Japanese government bonds | ¥ — ¥ — |¥ —
carrying value Municipal bonds — — —
Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 7,815 8,017 202
Other — — —
Subtotal 7,815 8,017 202
Fair value not Japanese government bonds — — —
exceeding carrying Municipal bonds — — —
value Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 652 608 (43)
Other — — —
Subtotal 652 608 (43)
Total ¥ 8,467 ¥ 8,626 |¥ 158
3. Other securities (as of March 31, 2017) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Type Carrying value Cost Difference Carrying value Cost Difference
Carrying value Stocks ¥ 33,568 ¥ 17,252 |¥ 16,316 |$ 299,206 $ 153,774 |$ 145,431
exceeding cost Bonds 431,068 420,364 10,704 3,842,303 3,746,893 95,409
Japanese government bonds 256,302 250,206 6,095 2,284,535 2,230,198 54,327
Municipal bonds 93,041 89,590 3,450 829,316 798,556 30,751
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 81,724 80,567 1,157 728,442 718,129 10,312
Other 76,017 73,478 2,539 677,573 654,942 22,631
Foreign bonds 44,571 43,604 966 397,281 388,662 8,610
Other 31,446 29,873 1,573 280,292 266,271 14,020
Subtotal 540,655 511,095 29,560 4,819,101 4,555,619 263,481
Carrying value not Stocks 2,389 2,557 (167) 21,294 22,791 (1,488)
exceeding cost Bonds 81,240 82,291 (1,050) 724,128 733,496 (9,359)
Japanese government bonds 37,048 37,868 (820) 330,225 337,534 (7,309)
Municipal bonds 5,371 5,409 (37) 47,874 48,212 (329)
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 38,820 39,012 (192) 346,020 347,731 (1,711)
Other 76,602 78,013 (1,410) 682,788 695,365 (12,567)
Foreign bonds 36,418 36,914 (496) 324,610 329,031 (4,421)
Other 40,184 41,098 (914) 358,178 366,324 (8,146)
Subtotal 160,233 162,862 (2,628) 1,428,228 1,451,662 (23,424)
Total ¥ 700,888 ¥673,967 | ¥ 26931 |$ 6,247,330 $6,007,371 | $ 240,048
Other securities (as of March 31, 2016) (Millions of yen)
Type Carrying value Cost Difference
Carrying value Stocks ¥ 26,843 ¥ 11,773 | ¥ 15,069
exceeding cost Bonds 519,991 503,056 16,934
Japanese government bonds 317,749 307,247 10,502
Municipal bonds 100,155 95,418 4,737
Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 102,085 100,390 1,695
Other 109,813 105,363 4,450
Foreign bonds 79,575 76,964 2,610
Other 30,238 28,398 1,840
Subtotal 656,648 620,193 36,455
Carrying value not Stocks 6,185 6,789 (604)
exceeding cost Bonds 13,331 13,344 (12)
Japanese government bonds 13,032 13,044 (11)
Municipal bonds — — —
Short-term bonds — — -
Corporate bonds 299 300 (0)
Other 52,543 53,708 (1,165)
Foreign bonds 27,205 27,445 (240)
Other 25,337 26,262 (925)
Subtotal 72,060 73,842 (1,782)
Total ¥ 728,709 ¥694,036 | ¥ 34,673

4. Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year ended March 31,2017 (Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales
Corporate bonds ¥ 332 ¥ 335 ¥ 3 $ 2,959 $ 2,986 $ 26
Total ¥ 332 ¥ 335 ¥ 3 $ 2,959 $ 2,986 $ 26

The sales are due to redemption of securities.

Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year ended March 31,2016 (Millions of yen)

Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales
Corporate bonds ¥ 199 ¥ 200 ¥ 1
Total ¥ 199 ¥ 200 ¥ 1

The sales are due to redemption of securities.

5. Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2017 (Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales Proceeds from sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 8,729 ¥ 2755 ¥ 226 $ 77,805 $ 24,556 $ 2,014
Bonds 232,710 3,474 2,477 2,074,249 30,965 22,078
Japanese government bonds 221,330 3,433 2,476 1,972,813 30,599 22,069
Municipal bonds 10,880 40 - 96,978 356 —
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 499 — 0 4,447 — 0
Other 66,317 1,293 1,412 591,113 11,525 12,585
Total ¥ 307,757 ¥ 7,523 ¥ 4,116 $ 2,743,176 $ 67,055 $ 36,687

Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2016 (Millions of yen)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 7,684 ¥ 3,205 ¥ 349
Bonds 175,353 1,704 732
Japanese government bonds 122,586 1,562 681
Municipal bonds 38,817 135 -
Short-term bonds - — -
Corporate bonds 13,949 6 51
Other 61,374 724 928
Total ¥ 244,412 ¥ 5,634 ¥ 2010

6. Securities which have readily determinable fair value are devaluated to fair value, and the difference between cost and fair value is treated as loss for the fiscal year if fair value has

significantly deteriorated compared with cost and fair value is unlikely to recover up to the acquisition cost.
The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 was zero.
The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 was zero.

The criteria for determining whether a security's fair value has "significantly deteriorated" are: where a security whose fair value is 50% or less and where a security whose fair value

exceeds 50% but is 70% or less of the acquisition cost, considering the quoted market price transition during a certain period in the past, business performance and other factors.

6. Revaluation of Land

Pursuant to the "Law Concerning the Revaluation of Land" (the "Law"), land
used for the Bank's business operations was revalued on March 31, 2002.
The excess of the revalued aggregate market value over the total book value
(carrying amount) before revaluation was included in net assets at an
amount net of the related tax effect at March 31, 2002. The corresponding
income taxes were included in liabilities at March 31, 2002 as deferred
taxes liability on revalued land.

The revaluation of the land was determined based on two method, the official
prices published by the Commissioner of the National Tax Authority in
accordance with Article 2, Paragraph 4 of the "Enforcement Ordinance

7. Stocks Issued

The number of stocks issued and changes during the year ended March 31,
2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows:

Thousands of stocks

Thousands of stocks

2017

2016

Treasury stock  Common stock issued

Treasury stock  Common stock issued

Concerning Land Revaluation," with certain neccssary adjustments, and the Beginning Of_ the year 6,563 170,000 6,554 170,000
appraisal by Real estate appraiser. Increase during the year 4581 - 92 -
The difference between the total fair value of land for business operation Decrease during the year - - — -
purposes, which was revalued in accordance with Article 10 of the above- End of the year 7,022 170,000 6,563 170,000
mentioned law, and the total book value of the land after the revaluation

was ¥3,860 million ($34,405 thousand) and ¥3,963 million at March 31, *1 The number of treasury stock as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year includes 450 thousand of

2017 and 2016.

the Bank's stock held by the board incentive BIP trust. The number of increase in treasury stock of

458 thousand, which are common stocks, was increased by 450 thousand due to the purchase of
own stocks by the board incentive BIP trust and increased by 8 thousand due to the purchase of
fractional numbers of less than one unit.

N

The number of treasury stocks, which are common stocks, was increased by 9 thousand of such

stocks that were purchased because they were in fractional numbers of less than one unit.
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8. Dividends

Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as
follows:

2017

November 11, 2016

Resolution by the
board of directors

June 23, 2016

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 572 million ¥ 653 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 3.5 ¥ 4.0
Base date September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016

Effective date December 9, 2016 June 24, 2016

2017

November 11, 2016

Resolution by the
board of directors

June 23, 2016

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Total dividends $ 5,098 thousand $ 5,820 thousand
Dividend per stock $ 0.03 $ 0.03
Base date September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016
Effective date December 9, 2016 June 24, 2016

2016

November 13, 2015 June 24, 2015

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Resolution by the
board of directors

Total dividends ¥ 490 million ¥ 490 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 3.0 ¥ 3.0
Base date September 30, 2015 March 31, 2015

Effective date

December 10, 2015 June 25, 2015

Dividend of which base date belonged to the year ended March 31, 2017
and 2016 but to be effective in the following year is summarized as follows:

2017
May 12, 2017
Resolution by the boad of diretors
Total dividends ¥ 571 million $ 5,089 thousand
Dividend per stock ¥ 35 $ 0.03
Base date March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017

Effective date June 5, 2017 June 5, 2017

Total dividends above mentioned include 1 million yen for the stocks held by
the board incentive BIP trust.

2016
June 23, 2016
Resolution by the general shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 653 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 4.0
Base date March 31, 2016

Effective date

9. Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents stated in the consolidated statement of cash

flows consisted of the following:
2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

June 24, 2016

Cash and due from banks ¥ 153,056  ¥106,159 $ 1,364,257
Current deposits (134) (246) (1,194)
Ordinary deposits (393) (492) (3,502)
Time deposits (3,000) (2,500) (26,740)
Deposits with Japan Post Bank (99) (143) (882)
Others 7) - (62)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 149,420  ¥102,776 $ 1,331,847

10. Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation totaled ¥25,812 million ($230,073 thousand)
and ¥25,973 million at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

11. Assets Pledged

Pledged assets and liabilities related to pledged assets as of March 31,
2017 and 2016 were summarized as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Pledged assets:
Securities ¥ 178,096 ¥ 180,991 $ 1,587,449

Liabilities related to the above pledged assets:
Deposits ¥ 14187 ¥ 16534 $ 126,455
Payables under securities lending transactions ¥ 45,126 ¥ 35130 $§ 402,228
Borrowed money ¥ 50,116 ¥ 45155 § 446,706

In addition, securities totaling ¥31,837 million ($283,777 thousand) and
¥32,568 million were pledged as collateral for settlement of exchange and
futures transactions at March 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively.

Deposits included in other assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 were
¥300 million ($2,798 thousand) and ¥314 million, respectively.

12.Loss on Impairment

The Bank reviewed its long-lived assets by grouping into the units
consisting of operating branches, idle assets, jointly used assets including
head office, administrative centers, company housing and dormitories and
each consolidated subsidiary for impairment and recognized loss on
impairment of land in the amount of zero ($0) and ¥27 million for the
year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The recoverable
amount used for measurement of loss on impairment was net selling price
and computed mainly based on the real estate appraisal value.

13. Other Comprehensive Income

Reclassification adjustments and tax effects allocated to other compre-
hensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 are

summarized as follows:
2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale:
Amount arising during the year ¥  (5,061) ¥  (1,042) $ (44,790)

Reclassification adjustments (2,680) (3,615) (24,208)
Amount before tax effect (7,741) (4,657) (68,999)
Tax effect 2,443 1,906 21,775
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for Sale: (5,297) (2,751) (47,214)
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments:
Amount arising during the year 187 (1,817) 1,666
Reclassification adjustments 1,038 1,064 9,252
Amount before tax effect 1,226 (752) 10,927
Tax effect (374) 166 (3,333)
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments 852 (585) 7,594

Revaluation of land:
Amount arising during the year - — -
Reclassification adjustments — — —
Amount before tax effect - - -

Tax effect - 65 -
Revaluation of land - 65 -
Retirement benefits liability adjustments:
Amount arising during the year 676 (2,249) 6,025
Reclassification adjustments 167 (201) 1,488
Amount before tax effect 843 (2,450) 7,514
Tax effect (257) 771 (2,290)
Retirement benefits liability adjustments 586 (1,678) 5,223

Total other comprehensive income ¥  (3,859) ¥  (4950) $ (34,397)

14. Leases

Investments in leased assets at March 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Gross lease receivables ¥ 12,093 ¥ 10,951 $ 107,790
Estimated residual values 735 593 6,551
Unearned interest income (1,678) (1,465) (14,956)

Investments in leased assets ¥ 11,149 ¥ 10,080 $ 99,376

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2017 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

2018 ¥ 3,755 $ 33,470
2019 3,026 26,972
2020 2,345 20,902
2021 1,558 13,887
2022 790 7,041
2023 and thereafter 616 5,490

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2016 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen)

2017 ¥ 3,445
2018 2,836
2019 2,114
2020 1,451
2021 707
2022 and thereafter 396

15. Income Taxes

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31,
2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for possible loan losses ¥ 1,758 ¥ 839 $ 15,669

Devaluation on securities 246 242 2,192
Depreciation 753 781 6,711
Tax loss carryforwards 459 455 4,091
Deffered gain (loss) on hedging instruments 1,131 1,505 10,081
Other 1,174 1,519 10,464
Subtotal:deferred tax assets 5,522 5,345 49,220
Valuation allowance (1,355) (1,518) (12,077)
Total:deferred tax assets 4,167 3,826 37,142

Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gains on securites availabl for sale (8,107) (10,550) (72,261)

Net defined benefits assets (271) (18) (2,415)
Other (4) (5) (35)
Total:deferred tax liabilities (8,383) (10,574) (74,721)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (4,216) ¥ (6,748) $ (37,579)

Note: Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of March 31, 2017 and 2016
were included in the following accounts in the consolidated balance sheets.

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Deferred tax assets ¥ 291 ¥ 264 $ 2,593
Deferred tax liabilities (4,507) (7,012) (40,172)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the reconciliation of
the statutory tax rate of the Bank to the effective income tax rate is not
stated as the difference between them is less than 5% of the statutory tax
rate.

16. Fair Value Information on Derivatives

(1) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied

Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting was not applied are set force in the table below. These items do not reflect the market risks of the derivative

transactions.

Currency-related transactions (Millions of yen)

Contra{:t %ontragt F?ir Unrealized
amounts  beyon value ain or
<March 31,2017> 1 gear g(Ioss)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Forward exchange contracts
Sold ¥ 12,188 ¥ - ¥ (31)¥ (31)
Bought 1,039 - (7) (7)

<March 31,2017>
Over-the-counter transactions:
Forward exchange contracts
Sold $108,637 $ - $ (276) $ (276)
Bought 9,261 - (62) (62)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(2) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

(Millions of yen)

Contract Contract Fair  Unrealized

]
<March 31,2016> amounts  beyond  value  gam "

Over-the-counter transactions:
Forward exchange contracts
Sold ¥ 18,287 ¥ — ¥ 865 ¥ 865
Bought 349 - (4) (4)

1. The above transactions are measured at fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are included in the consolidated statement of income.
2. Fair values are obtained using the discounted cash flow, etc.

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied are set force in the table below. These items below do not represent the market risks of the

derivative transactions.

Interest rate-related transactions (as of March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Hedge accounting Contract amounts Contract amounts
method Type Major hedged item |  Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits
receive-floating/ ¥ 67,929 ¥ 65929 ¥(3708) [$ 605481 |$ 587.654 |$(33051)
pay-fixed
Exceptional Interest rate swaps Loans
method receive-floating/ 10,000 10,000 89,134 89,134
pay-fixed
Total - - - ¥(3,708) - - $ (33,051)
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Interest rate-related transactions (as of March 31, 2016)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting Contract amounts
method Type Major hedged item |  Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits

receive-floating/

pay-fixed ¥ 62,328 ¥ 55,128 ¥ (4,934)
Exceptional Interest. rate swaps Loans
method receive-floating/ 10.000 10.000

pay-fixed ’ ’

Total — — — ¥ (4,934)

1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge accounting stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 February 2, 2002. "Treatment for
Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking industry."

2. The fair value of over-the-counter transactions is calculated based on the discounted present value and option pricing models.

3. Since derivative transactions qualifying for the exceptional method are treated as a unit of loans, those fair values are included in fair values of such loans.

Currency-related transactions (as of March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Hedge accounting Contract amounts Contract amounts
method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Call loans in foreign
Currency swaps | cUrency/
Call money in foreign ¥ 23,366 ¥ 4936 ¥ 169 |§ 208271 $ 43,996 $ 1,506
currencies
Total — - — ¥ 169 — — $ 1,506

Currency-related transactions (as of March 31, 2016)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting

method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts

Contract amounts

Normal method Call loans in foreign
currency/
Call money in foreign

currencies

Currency swaps ¥ 32,602

Total — _

beyond one year Fair value
¥ 3,831 ¥ (0)
— ¥ (0

1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge accounting stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25 July 29, 2002. "Treatment for
Accounting and Auditing for Transactions in foreign currencies, in Banking industry."

2. The fair value is calculated based on the discounted present value.

17. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries have defined-benefit corporation
pension funds and lump-sum retirement benefits. Certain consolidated
subsidiaries use a simplified method for calculating retirement benefit expenses
and liabilities. The following table sets forth the funded and accrued status of
the plans and the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for
the Bank's and the consolidated subsidiaries' defined retirement benefit plans:

(1) The changes on the retirement benefit obligation during the year ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Retirement benefit obligation at ...y 17,071 ¥ 15,202 $ 152,161

the beginning of the year
Service COSt...vvvuviriinnenn 547 453 4,875
Interest cOSt...ovvvvevnnennnes 68 166 606
Actuarial gain/loss--....... (546) 1,973 (4,866)
Retirement benefits paid ... (766) (724) (6,827)
Prior service cost ......... - - —
Other «evevveiiiiieieieen — _ —

Retirement benefit obligation...

at the end of the year ¥ 16,374 ¥ 17,071 $ 145,948

(2) The changes in plan assets during the year ended March 31, 2017 and

2016 are as follows:
2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Plan assets at the beginning of the year... ¥ 17,136 ¥ 17,064 $ 152,740
Expected return on plan assets..... 394 187 3,511
Actuarial gain/loss......... 129 (275) 1,149
Contributions by employers ... 307 825 2,736
Contributions by employees ... 60 60 534
Retirement benefits paid ... (760) (724) (6,774)
Other ..vveiiiiiiiei - — -

Plan assets at the end of the year... ¥ 17,268 ¥ 17,136 $ 153,917

(3) The following table sets forth the funded status of the plans and the
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2017 and 2016 for the bank’s and the consolidated subsidiaries’ defined

benefit plans:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

(5) The components of retirement benefits liability adjustments included in
other comprehensive income (before tax effect) for the years ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Prior service cost......... . ¥ - ¥ - $ -
Actuarial gain and loss ...... 843 (2,450) 7,514
Other oo - - -
Total oo ¥ 843 ¥ (2,450) $ 7,514

(6) Unrecognized prior service cost and unrecognized actuarial loss
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (before tax
effect) as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Unrecognized prior service cost ... ¥ = ¥ - $ -
Unrecognized actuarial gain/loss ... 34 (808) 303
Other ... - - -
Total i ¥ 34 ¥ (808) $ 303

18. Segment Information

. Outline of reportable segments

(7) The fair value of plan assets, by major category, as a percentage of
total plan assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Bonds ... 35% 33%
StOCKS ..o 32% 33%
General account ........................ 28% 28%

. 5% 6%
Total ... 100% 100%

Notes

1. The expected long-term return on assets has been estimated based on
the anticipated allocation to each asset class and the expected
long-term return on assets held in each category.

(8) The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans are as follows:

2017 2016

1) Discountrate: ...............cccoeeeeiiiiinns 0.6% 0.4%
2) Expected rate of long-term return on assets: ... 2.3% 1.1%

Reportable segments are components for which separate financial information is available and that are subject to periodic examination by the board of
directors to determine the allocation of management resources and assess performances.
The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise of the Bank and 7 consolidated subsidiaries that are engaged in the financial services business that

includes mainly banking services as well as leasing services.

Therefore, the reportable segments of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise ‘Banking’ and

the business.

‘Leasing’ that are distinguished by the type of

‘Banking’ includes deposit taking, lending, investment in securities and exchange services.
‘Leasing’ represents lease business by Yamagin Lease Co., Ltd. , one of the consolidated subsidiaries.

. Calculation method of ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment

The accounting policies in Note 3, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, are adopted for the reportable segments.

Reportable segment profit corresponds to ordinary income (net).

Ordinary income arising from intersegment transactions is based on arm’ s length prices.

Funded retirement benefit obligation--- ¥ 16,327 ¥ 17,024 $ 145,529
Plan assets at fair value ---  (17,268) (17,136) (153,917)
(940) (112) (8,378)
Unfunded retirement benefit obligation - - - 47 47 418
Net liability for retirement benefits
in the consolidated balance sheet (893) (65) (7.959)
Liability for retirement benefits- - - 47 47 418
Net defined benefit-assets:-- 940 112 8,378
Net liability for retirement benefits ¥  (893) ¥ (65) s (7.959)

in consolidated balance sheet

(4) The components of retirement benefit expense for the year ended March
31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Service Cost «revrrvvnieriis ¥ 486 ¥ 393 $ 4,331

Interest cost -- 68 166 606
Expected return on plan assets --- (394) (187) (3,511)
Amortization of actuarial gain/loss cost - -- 167 (201) 1,488
Amortization of prior service cost --- — - -

Other v vvvvviiiiiiiiiiii —_ — —

Retirement benefit expense --- ¥ 327 ¥ 171 $ 2,914
Notes

1. Concerning the consolidated subsidiaries that use a simplified method,
all of the retirement benefit cost is included in the service cost.

2. Service cost does not include the amounts contributed by employees
with respect to corporate pension fund plans.

3. Information of ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2017 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment i ot . Consolidated
Banking Leasing Total Other ota djustments financial statements
Ordinary income
External customers ¥ 39,467 ¥ 4815 ¥ 44,282 ¥ 1575 ¥ 45857 ¥ 28 ¥ 45,886
Intersegment 200 115 316 867 1,183 (1,183) —
Total 39,667 4,930 44,598 2,442 47,041 (1,155) 45,886
Segment profit 7,254 111 7,365 650 8,016 67 8,083
Segment assets 2,602,273 14,944 2,617,217 12,288 2,629,505 (16,721) 2,612,784
Segment liabilities 2,454,342 11,540 2,465,882 8,372 2,474,255 (14,985) 2,459,270
Other items
Depreciation 952 13 966 3 970 - 970
Interest income 25,354 3 25,357 194 25,551 (93) 25,457
Interest expense 2,459 62 2,521 47 2,569 (88) 2,480
Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 1,963 45 2,008 3 2,012 - 2,012
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Year ended March 31, 2017

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Reportable segment X ot g Consolidated
Banking Leasing Total Other ota djustments financial statements

Ordinary income

External customers $ 351,787 $ 42918 $ 394,705 $ 14,038 $ 408,744 $ 249 $ 409,005

Intersegment 1,782 1,025 2,816 7,727 10,544 (10,544) -
Total 353,569 43,943 397,522 21,766 419,297 (10,295) 409,005
Segment profit 64,658 989 65,647 5,793 71,450 597 72,056
Segment assets 23,195,231 133,202 23,328,433 109,528 23,437,962 (149,041) 23,288,921
Segment liabilities 21,876,655 102,861 21,979,516 74,623 22,054,149 (133,568) 21,920,581
Other items

Depreciation 8,485 115 8,610 26 8,646 - 8,646

Interest income 225,991 26 226,018 1,729 227,747 (828) 226,918

Interest expense 21,918 552 22,470 418 22,898 (784) 22,111

Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 17,497 401 17,898 26 17,933 - 17,935

Notes

1. Ordinary income is substituted for sales of companies in other industries. "Adjustments" are elimination of intersegment transactions.
2. "Other" represents business segments that are not the reportable segments and comprises business support service, credit guarantee service, data processing, credit

card business, venture capital business, etc.
3. "Adjustments" are as follows:

(1) "Ordinary income for External customers" is elimination related to provision of reserve for loan losses.
(2) "Adjustments for segment profit" are eliminations of intersegment transactions.
4. "Segment profit" corresponds to ordinary income(net) of Consolidated Statements of Income.

Year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

5. Information concerning the impairment loss of fixed assets by reportable segment
The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 was zero.

Year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment

Banking

Leasing

Other Total

Total

Impairment loss ¥ 27

¥ 27 ¥ — ¥ 27

19. Amounts Per Stock

Amounts per stock of net assets, net income and diluted net income, as presented
below, are based on the number of stocks outstanding at each balance sheet date
and the weighted average number of stocks of common stock outstanding during
each year respectively.

2017 2016 2017

(Yen) (U.S. dollars)
Net assets ¥ 941.02 ¥ 904.81 $ 8.38
Net income ¥ 3355 ¥ 4108 $ 0.29
Diluted
net income ¥ 2994 ¥ 3667 $ 0.26

The basis for the calculation of net income per stock for the year ended March 31,
2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows:

2017 2016 2017

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net income attributable

to owners to parent ¥ 5473 ¥ 6,714 $ 48,783

Amount not attributable

to common stock: - - -

Net income attributable to owners

of parent related to common stock 5,473 6,714 48,783

Weighted average

number of stocks of

common stock outstanding 163,153 163,442 163,153
thousand thousand thousand

Effect of dilutive securities

bonds with stock acquisition rights 19,685 19,646 19,685
thousand thousand thousand

The number of the Bank's common stocks held by board incentive BIP trust is
included in the treasury stocks which was deducted from the number of common
stocks outstanding at each balance sheet date, respectively.

The weighted average number of the Bank's common stocks held by board

incentive BIP trust is included in the treasury stocks which was deducted from the
weighted average number of stocks of common stock outstanding, respectively.

20. Financial Instruments

1. Matters relating to the state of financial instruments

Reportable segment c lidated
Other Total Adjustments fina nc(:igT(; tl afer?] ents
Banking Leasing Total
Ordinary income
External customers ¥ 38,861 ¥ 4,772 ¥ 43,633 ¥ 1,711 ¥ 45344 ¥ (92) ¥ 45,252
Intersegment 236 118 354 704 1,059 (1,059) -
Total 39,097 4,890 43,987 2,416 46,403 (1,151) 45,252
Segment profit 9,934 190 10,124 633 10,757 (10) 10,747
Segment assets 2,492,740 13,152 2,505,893 16,362 2,522,255 (18,582) 2,503,672
Segment liabilities 2,344,078 9,171 2,353,249 11,261 2,364,510 (16,782) 2,347,728
Other items
Depreciation 1,235 14 1,249 4 1,253 - 1,253
Interest income 26,237 3 26,240 121 26,362 (153) 26,208
Interest expense 2,708 66 2,775 54 2,829 (98) 2,730
Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 1,999 59 2,059 0 2,060 - 2,060
4. Related information
Information by service
Year ended March 31, 2017 (Millions of yen)
Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 18,318 ¥ 14,222 ¥ 4813 ¥ 8,532 ¥ 45,886
Year ended March 31, 2017 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers $ 163,276 $ 126,767 $ 42,900 $ 76,049 $ 409,002

Information about geographical areas is omitted because the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct banking and other related activities in Japan without having foreign subsidiaries
or foreign branches.

Information about major customers is not presented because there are no customers having over a 10% share of ordinary income.

Year ended March 31, 2016 (Millions of yen)

Loan Security investment Lease Other Total

Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 18,782 ¥ 13,269 ¥ 4,710 ¥ 8,489 ¥ 45,252

(1) Policy for financial instruments

The Yamagata Bank group (referred to as the “Bank” below)
provides financial services mainly connected with the banking
business including deposits, loans, buying and selling trading
securities and security investments. In the banking business, which
is the main business of the Bank, funds are raised by means such as
accepting deposits and borrowing money from the call money
market, and are invested by providing loans and buying securities.
Financial assets and liabilities are susceptible to interest rate
fluctuations, so the Bank bears market risk, which is the risk of loss
caused by changes in financial market conditions (for example,
interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk), and the risk of failing to
raise sufficient funds.

The Bank performs comprehensive asset and liability management
(ALM) to appropriately control the balance of profit and risk in a way
that suits fund raising and investment policy as well as taking into
consideration the state of assets and liabilities and the trends of the
financial and capital markets. The Bank uses derivatives as part of
such management.

(2) Nature and risk of financial instruments

The Bank's financial assets consist mainly of loans to domestic
companies and individuals, and the Bank is exposed to the credit
risks arising from customers' default on their loans. Securities mainly
consist of stocks, bonds and investment trusts, some of which are
held until the maturity date, others are held for purposes such as
investment and business promotion. Those securities are exposed to
credit risk of the relevant issuer, the risks of fluctuations in interest
rates and market prices.

Deposits, call money, etc., that are financial liabilities have interest
rate fluctuation risks caused by differences in interest rates and the
periods between financial liabilities and financial assets. Financial
liabilities also have the funding risk of loss due to inability to raise
funds, because of reasons such as unexpected outflow of funds, and
by raising funds at interest rates much higher than the normal rate
because of unavoidable reasons; and the market liquidity risk of loss
caused by the inability to raise the required funds because of
disruption such as a credit crunch in the entire market and by
trading at prices greatly disadvantageous compared with the normal
price.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments
i. Credit risk management
The Bank measures the risk amount through credit judgments,
credit ratings and self-assessments, attaching importance to the
public good, safety, growth potential and profitability, and controls
the risk on the principle of elimination of concentration with
specific customers, in accordance with credit policy (lending
standards), which states the basic ideas about lending, the code
of conduct and other matters, and with the credit risk management
rules, which specify credit risk management methods.
The Bank's credit review division and sales promotion division are
separated to ensure independence of each other and stringent
credit risk management.
The Bank conducts rigorous self-assessment, which includes
audits by the audit division, from the aspect of securing the
soundness of the assets. Based on the results, the Bank appropri-
ately writes off bad debts and sets aside reserves.
The Bank has a credit rating system for business loans to
understand the true state of companies from both quantitative and
qualitative aspects.
To reduce and offset credit risk, the Bank receives collateral and
guarantees for lending transactions and offsets loans against
deposits. The basic ideas about security are stated in the credit
policy, and security assessments, management policies and
procedures are set out in the operation manual.
Measurement method and procedures for credit risk amount are
stipulated in the operation manual and the risk is measured
monthly based on the borrowers' credit rating and other factors.
The results are reported to the ALM Council (the board of
managing directors).
i.Market risk management
a.Interest rate risk management
The Bank's interest rate fluctuation risk is managed by ALM.
Risk management methodology and procedures are stated in
detail in the rules and manuals related to ALM. Present
conditions are checked, state of execution is checked and future
actions are discussed by the ALM Council, based on the
outcome of the deliberations of the ALM Committee.
Risks are monitored using methodology such as basis point
value (BPV) and value at risk (VaR), and mainly with gap
analyses and interest rate sensitivity analyses, and the results
are reported monthly to the ALM Council. As part of ALM,
derivatives such as interest rate swap transactions are
conducted to hedge interest rate risks.
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b.Price fluctuation risk management
Trading and management of investment instruments such as
securities are performed in accordance with the investment
policy and risk management policy as determined by the board
of directors half-yearly. The middle section of the Financial
Market Division and the Risk Control Section of the General
Planning & Coordinations Division measure market risk for
securities investments quantitatively and comprehensively using
VaR, etc. The results are reported to the relevant directors, the
ALM Council, etc., with the frequency set for each financial
instrument to check the state of compliance with the rule.
c.Quantitative information concerning market risk
The principal financial instruments that are subject to interest rate
risk and price fluctuation risk, which are the main risk variables
affecting the Bank, are loans and bills discounted, securities,
deposits and derivatives transactions.
The variance-covariance method (holding period: 90 days*,
confidence interval: 99%, observation period: 250 business days)
was used for the calculation of VaR, the market risk volume. The
volume of overall market risk (estimated loss) as of March 31,
2017 (consolidated accounts settlement date) and 2016 were
¥ 26,173 million ($233,291 thousand) and ¥ 31,581 million.
The Bank believes that the measurement model estimates market
risk with sufficient accuracy because the Bank examines the
model by means such as performing backtesting to compare the
VaR calculated using the model with the actual profit and loss.
However, VaR measures market risk volume with a certain
probability that is calculated statistically based on historical
market movements, and therefore VaR may fail to represent risk in
the case of exceptionally drastic change in market conditions.
* Holding period for shares purchased for the business relation-
ship, which are included in the securities: 125 days.
iii.Liquidity risk management
Sections managing liquidity risks at the Bank are clearly stated in
the liquidity risk management rule that stipulate the liquidity risk
management procedures, system and so on. The Bank has a
management system to secure sufficient liquidity in case of
unexpected events by setting liquidity standards for various cases
including times of normality, times of concern, and times of
emergency.

(4) Supplementary explanation of fair values, of financial instruments
Fair value of financial instruments includes market price as well as
reasonably determined value where market price is unavailable.The
reasonably determined value could differ depending on different
conditions and assumptions because calculation of such value is
conducted based on certain conditions and assumptions.

2. Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying amount and fair value, as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
difference between the values are shown in the table below. Unlisted
stocks and others whose fair value is deemed to be extremely difficult to
determine are not listed in the table (see Note 2). Accounts considered to

be immaterial are omitted.
<March 31, 2017>

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 153,056 |¥153,056 |¥ —
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 9,127 9,289 162
Other securities 699,830 699,830 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 1,674,250
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (6,563)
1,667,687 (1,689,417 21,730
Total assets 2,529,701  [2,551,594 21,892
(1) Deposits 2,180,460 |2,180,615 154
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit 115,701 115,701 0
(3) Payables under securities 45,126 45,126 -
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 53,245 53,211 (34)
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 11,219 11,417 198
Total liabilities 2,405,754 |2,406,073 318
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied (38) (38) -
To which hedge accounting is applied (3,538) (3,538) =
Total derivatives ¥ (3577) |¥ (3,577) |¥ —

<March 31, 2017>

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Carrying amount

Fair Value Difference

(1) Cash and due from banks | $1,364,257 |$1,364,257 | $ -
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 81,353 82,797 1,443
Other securities 6,237,899 6,237,899 -
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 14,923,344
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (58,498)
14,864,845 | 15,058,534 193,689
Total assets 22,548,364 | 22,743,506 195,133
(1) Deposits 19,435,422 | 19,436,803 1,372
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit | 1,031,295 1,031,295 0
(3) Payables under securities 402,228 402,228 —
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 474,596 474,293 (303)
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 100,000 101,764 1,764
Total liabilities 21,443,568 | 21,446,412 2,834
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied (338) (338) -
To which hedge accounting is applied (31,535) (31,535) —
Total derivatives $ (31.883) |$ (31,883) | $ -

(*1) General reserve and specific reserve for possible loan losses correspond-
ing to loans and bills discounted are deducted.
(*2) Derivative transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are

presented on a net basis.
<March 31, 2016>

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 106,159 |¥106,159 |¥ —
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 8,467 8,626 158
Other securities 726,749 726,749 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 1,584,509
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (5,993)
1,578,516 |[1,609,083 30,567
Total assets 2,419,892 [2,450,619 30,726
(1) Deposits 2,075,390 |2,075,885 494
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit 119,845 119,849 3
(3) Payables under securities 35,130 35,130 —
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 48,088 48,306 217
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 11,268 10,776 (491)
Total liabilities 2,289,723 |2,289,949 225
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 860 860 —
To which hedge accounting is applied (4,935) (4,935) -
Total derivatives ¥ (4,074) | ¥ (4,074) |¥ —

Note 1 Method to calculate fair values of financial instruments

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks
Concerning due from banks without maturity, the carrying amount is
reported as fair value because the fair value is approximately the same as
the carrying amount. Concerning due from banks with maturity, the
carrying amount is reported as fair value because the remaining periods
are as short as less than one year, and the fair value is approximately the
same as the carrying amount.

(2) Securities
Fair value of stocks is determined based on the exchange price, and that
of bonds based on the exchange price or price quoted by the counter party
financial institutions. Fair value of investment trusts is determined based
on the price publicly available. Fair value of privately placed guaranteed
bonds is calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and
interest at an interest rate deemed to be applicable to similar bonds by
categories based on internal ratings and terms of the bonds.

(3) Loans and bills discounted
Fair value of loans and bills discounted is calculated by categorizing the
loans based on the type, internal rating, term (the remaining period or the
period between interest rate renewals), and then discounting the total of
the principals and interest with a rate expected of a new similar loan. For
loans with short remaining periods (less than one year), the carrying
amount is reported as the fair value because the fair value is approxi-
mately the same as the carrying amount.
For receivables from "legally bankrupt", "virtually bankrupt" and "possibly
bankrupt" borrowers, possible loan losses are estimated based on factors
such as present value of expected future cash flow and expected amounts
to be collected from collateral and guarantees. Since the fair value of
these items approximates the carrying amount net of the currently
expected loan losses at the end of the year, such carrying amount is
presented as fair value.
Concerning loans whose maturity dates were not set because they were
limited to within the values of the collateral offered as securiy, the carrying
amount is reported as fair value because the fair value is expected to be
approximately the same as the carrying amount considering expected
periods of repayments and the terms of interest rate.

Liabilities

(1) Deposits, and (2) negotiable certificates of deposit
Concerning demand deposits, the amounts to be paid if such deposits
were withdrawn on the end of the year (book values) are regarded as fair
value. Time deposits are separated by period, and the present value is
calculated by discounting the future cash flow. The discount rate is the
rate used for new deposit-taking. For those with short remaining periods
(less than one year), their carrying amount is reported as the fair value
because the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(3) Payables under securities lending transactions.
Call loans and bills purchased the carrying amount is reported as fair
value for call money and bills sold, and payables under securities lending
transactions because they have short maturity (less than one year), and
the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(4) Borrowed money
Fair value of borrowed money is calculated by discounting the total
amount of the principal and interest of such borrowed money classified by
the type, internal rating and the remaining period at the interest rates
considered to be applicable to new similar borrowed money. The fair value
of short-term borrowed money with remaining period as of the end of the
fiscal year not exceeding one year is based on the carrying amount
because the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights
Call loans and bills purchased the carrying amount is reported as fair
value for bonds with stock acquisition rights because they have short
maturity (less than one year), and the fair value is approximately the same
as the carrying amount.

Derivative transactions

Matters related to derivatives transactions are as stated in the Note 16 "Fair
Value Information on Derivatives".

Note 2 Financial instruments whose fair value is deemed to be extremely
difficult to determine were as follows. These were not included in the
Asset, "(2) Securities" in "Fair value of financial instruments”.

<March 31, 2017>

Carrying amount
Category —
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Unlisted stocks (*1)(*2) ¥ 1,590 $ 14,172
Investment in partnerships (*3) and others 7,004 62,429
Total ¥ 8,595 $ 76,611

<March 31, 2016>

Carrying amount

Category Millions of yen
Unlisted stocks (*1) (*2) ¥ 1,608
Investment in partnerships (*3) and others 4,339
Total ¥ 5,948

(*1) Unlisted stocks are not subject to fair value disclosure because of the
extreme difficulty in determining their fair values as they are not sold in
the market.

(*2) Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥ 2 million in the
previous consolidated fiscal year.

Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥ 14 million
($124 thousand) in this consolidated fiscal year.

(*3) In the case that partnership assets consist of unlisted stocks whose fair
value is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine, investment in
partnerships is not subject to fair value disclosure.
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Note 3 Scheduled redemption amounts of financial assets and securities with maturities

<March 31, 2017>

(Millions of yen)

LD T | 5o v | 5 veons o | 7 vens veuen | Due st
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Due from banks ¥ 153,056 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Securities 72,915 239,009 95,789 89,180 87,986 66,035
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,786 3,562 2,838 939 — -
Corporate bonds 1,786 3,562 2,838 939 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 71,128 235,446 92,951 88,240 87,986 66,035
Japanese government bonds 34,244 110,091 43,364 50,301 23,234 32,114
Municipal bonds 6,811 47,381 7,931 4,415 10,157 21,715
Corporate bonds 18,473 44,163 28,478 14,675 14,753 -
Other 11,598 33,810 13,176 18,847 39,841 12,206
Loans and bills discounted (*) 391,552 326,267 255,110 156,391 162,614 365,378
Total ¥ 617,525 | ¥ 565,277 | ¥ 350,899 | ¥ 245571 | ¥ 250,601 | ¥ 431,414

#* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loan to "Legally bankrupt" borrowers, loan to "Virtually bankrupt”
borrowers, loan to "Possibly bankrupt" borrowers, amounting to ¥ 16,934 million ($ 150,940 thousand) is not included in the above table.

<March 31, 2017 >

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Lo Tl | 5 vem trasn | 5 veme e | 7 vens vauen | Dueater
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Due from banks $ 1,364,257 | $ - $ —|$ - $ -1 8 —
Securities 649,924 2,130,394 853,810 794,901 784,258 588,599
Held-to-maturity bonds 15,919 31,749 25,296 8,369 - —
Corporate bonds 15,919 31,749 25,296 8,369 - —
Other securities with a maturity date 633,995 2,098,636 828,514 786,522 784,258 588,599
Japanese government bonds 305,232 981,290 386,522 448,355 207,095 286,246
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds 164,658 393,644 253,837 130,804 131,500 -
Other 103,378 301,363 117,443 167,991 355,120 108,797
Loans and bills discounted 3,490,079 2,908,164 2,273,910 1,393,983 1,449,451 3,256,778
Total $ 5,504,278 | $ 5,038,568 | $ 3,127,720 | $ 2,188,884 | $ 2,233,719 | $ -
<March 31, 2016> (Millions of yen)
1 y;L:eo:qess 1 3I?eu:; ?rf:g[lgh 3 yge?rz ?rf\trihgh 5 yzg?sagforugh 7 yggri ?r?r(ce)ijgh ?Beyzgresr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Due from banks ¥ 106,159 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ -
Securities 100,520 176,184 169,429 73,598 106,063 57,823
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,895 3,039 2,898 634 - —
Corporate bonds 1,895 3,039 2,898 634 — -
Other securities with a maturity date 98,625 173,144 166,531 72,964 106,063 57,823
Japanese government bonds 45,160 66,281 93,413 43,253 46,711 35,960
Municipal bonds 12,767 43,058 11,025 4,355 7,986 20,962
Corporate bonds 19,599 35,799 27,423 9,255 10,306 -
Other 21,097 28,005 34,667 16,099 41,058 900
Loans and bills discounted (*) 390,363 301,529 244,335 149,646 166,337 314,003
Total ¥ 597,043 | ¥ 477,713 | ¥ 413,765 | ¥ 223,244 | ¥ 272,400 | ¥ 371,827

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loan to "Legally bankrupt" borrowers, loan to "Virtually bankrupt"
borrowers, loan to "Possibly bankrupt" borrowers, amounting to ¥ 18,294 million is not included in the above table.

Note 4 Scheduled repayment amounts of bonds, borrowed money and other interest bearing liabilities

<March 31, 2017>

(Millions of yen)

Due in Due after Due after Due after Due after Due after
1 vear or less 1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through 10 years
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Deposits (*) ¥ 2,031,664 | ¥ 139,783 | ¥ 9,013 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 115,671 30 - - - —
Payable under securities lending transactions 45,126 - - - — -
Borrowed money 51,241 1,467 521 15 - —
Bonds with stock acquisition right - 11,219 - — — —
Total ¥ 2,243,704 | ¥ 152,499 | ¥ 9,535 | ¥ 15| ¥ —| ¥ —

*Demand deposits are included in "Due in 1 year or less".

<March 31, 2017>

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

1y eDaL'r'eO:nless 1 3I/De'fr ?rsg[Jgh 3 ygauri ?ritr?)rugh 5 yzgssigforugh 7 yzgres Et}]r:trce)rugh ?geyzfatg
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits $ 18,109,136 | $ 1,245948 | $ 80,336 | $ - $ - % -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,031,027 267 — — — —
Payable under securities lending transactions 402,228 - — - — —
Borrowed money 456,734 13,076 4,643 133 - -
Bonds with stock acquisition right = 100,000 — — - —
Total $ 19,999,144 | $ 1,359,292 | $ 84,989 | $ 133 8 -1$ -
<March 31, 2016> (Millions of yen)
1y (EaL:eo:r} ess 1 %u:; ?rf:ngh 3 yg;z ?kﬁtriijgh 5 ylgg?satggugh 7 ygauri ?lfntr?)rugh ?geyzzg
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits (*) ¥ 1,875,892 | ¥ 188,562 | ¥ 10,936 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 118,889 956 - — - —
Payable under securities lending transactions 35,130 - - - - -
Borrowed money 46,248 1,406 432 - — -
Bonds with stock acquisition right - - 11,268 — - —
Total ¥ 2,076,161 | ¥ 190,925 | ¥ 22,637 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —

*Demand deposits are included in "Due in 1 year or less".

21.Business Combinations, etc.

Transaction under common control
Additional acquisitions of stock of subsidiaries
1.Summary of transactions
(1) Name of combined business and the nature of its business

Name of combined business Nature of business
Yamagin Guarantee Service Co., Ltd. | Credit guarantee business
Yamagin Lease Co., Ltd. Financial leasing business
Yamagin Card Service Co., Ltd. Credit, Loans, Credit guarantee
Yamagin System Service Co., Ltd. Information service business

(2) Combination date
December 9, 2016
(3) Legal form of business combination
Stock purchased from non-controlling shareholders
(4) Name of companies after business combination
No change
(5) Other matters regarding summary of transaction
In order to increase the corporate value by strengthening group wide
management, a portion of the common stock of the above consolidated
subsidiaries was purchased from non-controlling shareholders.
2.Summary of accounting procedures implemented
Pursuant to "Accounting standard for business combinations” (ASBJ
Statement No. 21, September 13, 2013) and "Guidance on accounting
standards for business combinations and business divestitures accounting
standards" (ASBJ Guidance No. 10, September 13, 2013), as for transac-
tions under common control, they were processed as transactions with
non-controlling shareholders.
3.Matters concerning additional purchases of subsidiaries
Purchase cost of acquired company and breakdown of types of consideration.
Types of consideration ~ Cash and due from Banks 2.819 Million Yen
25,127 Thousands of U.S. dollars
2.819 Million Yen
25,127 Thousands of U.S. dollars
4.Matters concerning change in stock ownership of the Bank relating to
transactions with non-controlling shareholders
(1) Main reasons for change in capital surplus
Purchase of additional stock of subsidiary shareholders
(2) Amount of increase of capital surplus due to transactions with non-
controlling shareholders
5.281 Million Yen

Purchase cost

22.Significant Subsequent Events

At the May 12, 2017 board of directors' meeting, the Bank resolved to present
the agenda of consolidation of stock to the 205" annual general meeting of
shareholders held on June 23, 2017, and the agenda resolved at the
shareholders' meeting. The content of the consolidation of stock is as follows:

1.Purpose

In order to improve investor convenience, in accordance with the "Action
plan for consolidating trading units," all stock exchanges in Japan aim to
consolidate the number of stock constituting one unit of stock, which is
the trading unit of common stock of domestically listed companies, to 100
by October 1, 2018.
In light of the foregoing, the Bank is changing the number of its stock
constituting one unit of stock from 1,000 to 100 and is implementing a
consolidation of stock (consolidation of stock from five to one) for the
purpose of making the investment unit of the Bank's stock to one that is
considered preferable by all stock exchanges in Japan (50,000 yen or
more and less than 500,000 yen).
2.Consolidation of stock ratio and timing
Effective October 1, 2017, the consolidated stock will be consolidated at
a 5 to 1 ratio based on the number of stock owned by shareholders as
specified or recorded in the final shareholders registry as of September 30,

2017.

3.Number of stock to be reduced by the consolidation

Total number of issued and outstanding stock before the

consolidation of stock (as of March 31, 2017): 170,000,000 shares
Number of stock reduced by the consolidation of stock | 136,000,000 shares
Total number of issued and outstanding stock after the

consolidation of stock 34,000,000 shares

Note:"Number of stock reduced by the consolidation stock” and "Total
number of issued and outstanding stock after the consolidation of
stock” are theoretical values obtained by multiplying the total number
of issued stock before the consolidation to stock by the consolidation

ratio.

4.Impact on information per stock
The per stock information, assuming that the consolidation of stock had
taken effect at the beginning of the preceding consolidated fiscal year, is

as follows:

Preceding consolidated

Current consolidated

fiscal year (April 1, fiscal year (April 1,
2015-March 31, 2016) | 2016-March 31, 2017)
Net assets ber stock ¥ . 452405[¥ 470509
Gl assets per stoc $ 40.32 | $ 41.93
Net income per stock Yo 20539 [¥ 167.74
et income per stoc $ 1.83[s 1.49
) ) ¥ 183.35 | ¥ 149.68
Diluted net income per stock 3 6318 1733
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets

Cash and due from banks............cooiiiiiiiiii e
Call I0ANS ...
Monetary claims bought ...
TradiNg SECUNTIES  ...uinii e
SECUMEIES .ttt e e e e aans

Foreign exChange ........c.ouiiiiiii e
Other assets  .......ccocevvviininnnn
Tangible fixed assets
Buildings ..........coiiiiiii.
LaNA e
Leased @SSElS ..o
Constraction IN ProCESS  .....vviniiiee e
Other tangible fixed @ssets .......c.coovviviiiiiiiiiiiiiie
Intangible fixed assets ..............
Software ...
Other intangible fixed assets
Prepaid pension COSt ...
Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ..................
Reserve for possible loan and 10SSES  ........ccoovvviiiiiiiiiii
TOtal @SSETS ...t

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities

Deposits ....ooiiiiii
Negotiable certificate of deposits ..
Call MONEY ettt e e e e e aans
Payables under securities lending transactions ...........................
BOIrOWEd MONEY ....vieiitiie e e
Foreign exChange ..........oiiiiiiii e
Bonds with stock acquisition rights ...
Other labilitiesS ..o
Reserve for bonuses to directors  .............ccoeeennlll
Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for losses on CoNtiNgENCIES .......ovviviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeas
Deferred tax liabilities ...
Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land..................
Acceptance and guarantees ...
Total liabiliTieS ....vnieiiee e

Net Assets

COMMON STOCK e
Capital SUMPIUS ..o
Retained €arnings ........c.coiiiiiiii e
Treasury STOCK ...
Total shareholder's equity ............cccoovviiiiiiiiieiieie e,
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale .........
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments
Revaluation of land
Total o

Total NEL @SSELS ...viiiiii
Total liabilities and net assets  .......cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii

2017 2016 2017
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
153,050 ¥ 106,153 $ 1,364,204
8,377 15,149 74,672
5,648 5,093 50,345
22 28 204
718,370 741,114 6,403,158
1,682,480 1,593,372 14,996,707
979 1,236 8,726
4,504 5,051 40,147
14,313 13,645 127,583
3,608 3,563 32,167
9,175 8,789 81,782
52 54 464
30 111 271
1,446 1,126 12,896
1,898 1,603 16,921
1,690 1,389 15,072
207 213 1,849
906 921 8,078
17,129 14,157 152,685
(6,124) ¥ (5,503) $ (54,590)
2,601,556 2,492,023 23,188,846
2,183,249 ¥ 2,076,500 $ 19,460,282
119,131 125,885 1,061,874
11,219 15,211 100,000
45,126 35,130 402,235
50,155 45171 447,062
53 38 479
11,219 11,268 100,000
11,205 11,820 99,883
22 25 200
24 264 214
a7 55 418
226 220 2,017
4,206 7,002 37,498
1,324 1,325 11,808
17,129 ¥ 14,157 $ 152,685
2,454,342 2,344,078 21,876,661
12,008 ¥ 12,008 $ 107,037
4,932 4,932 43,965
116,024 112,119 1,034,178
(3,171) (2,976) (28,266)
129,794 126,084 1,156,915
18,810 24,110 167,662
(2,578) (3,431) (22,987)
1,188 1,182 10,594
17,419 21,861 155,269
147,214 147,945 1,312,184
2,601,556 ¥ 2,492,023 $ 23,188,846

Non-Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31. 2017 and 2016

Ordinary INCome ...cooiviiiii

INTErESt INCOME -+ tnvieintiii i
Interest on loans and discounts
Interest and dividends ON SECUNTIES  +rvvveeeerriiiiiiieeiiiiiiinneees
Interest on call [0ANS -+ vviiiii
Interest on deposits with banks
Other interest --.......

Fees and commissions
Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchange ------
Other fees and commissions

Other operating incCome  -«-«vvvvvvveenininininns
Gains on sales of trading securities
Gains 0N sales Of DONAS  vvvevriiii i
Income from derivatives other than for trading or hedging ------
Other «vvvvvvvvinnnnn. e

Other Income
Recoveries of written off claims
Gains on sales of stocks and other securities «----ovvveeeinnininns
[0 1 7= e

Ordinary Expenses .........................................................

INtErest EXPENSE  «-vvrrvrmemiiiiiiiiiiie
INterest ON dEPOSItS -« -xvvevmrmmemtrtiiii
Interest on negotiable certificate of deposits
Interest on Call MONEY  «-vxeeuermermerniiiiiiii
Interest on payables under securities lending transaction  ------
Interest on borrowings and rediscounts
Interest on interest Swaps ««-«-rvoeeeieiinns
Other INtEerest ««-evveveeremereneeenennennns

Fees and commIiSSIONS PAYMENES «-cxvrvererrmrrurrniriiiiiiiiiiiein.
Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchange ------
Other fees and COMMISSIONS  ««cxeeverrrremeamenmrneneaneneeeneenennanen

Other OPErating EXPENSE -« +««« errrrrerernteriuneetii et e
Loss on foreign exchange transactions ««-««««eeveeeeeemreeneinniinnss
LOSS ON SAlES Of DONAS «--cevvenrermetmeneitiii e eeens
Expenses on derivatives other than for trading or hedging ------

General and adminiStrative eXPENSES  «««txxreererrnrrrnerieriaiinaeinns

OthEr EXPENSES -« vnervermernenntnieiieieie i
Provision of reserve for possibe loan losses — «-evvvveiiiiiiiiniiis
Losses on sales of stocks and other securities .
Losses on devaluation of stocks and other securities  ------......
[0 1137

Ordinary Income(Net) ..o

EXtraordinary l0SSES — «-ceeereurrumrmmiuiiiiiiiiiiiei
Loss on disposal of non-current assets ««-«--ocoveveiiiii
IMPAIrMENT 10SS  +-vvermermermerieiiii

Income before income taxes ..-occoevoveeiiiiiiiiiiiieieen,

Income taxes -current
Income taxes -deferred
Total INCOME TAXES  +vveerrnrrrtte ittt e eeaaes

Net INCOME oo

Amounts per share:

Net income
Net assets

2017 2016 2017
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
39,667 ¥ 39,097 $ 353,575
25,354 26,237 225,994
17,947 18,409 159,971
7,184 7,666 64,039

130 51 1,160
9 11 87
82 98 735
6,687 6,449 59,610
1,558 1,580 13,894
5,128 4,868 45,716
4,590 2,138 40,919
0 4 6
4172 2,133 37,193
417 - 3,719
— 0 —
3,034 4,271 27,050
3 4 29
2,662 3,500 23,735
368 766 3,285
32,413 29,163 288,912
2,459 2,708 21,923
1,081 1,297 9,638
101 153 902
17 25 154
139 76 1,245
62 58 554
965 1,034 8,601
92 62 826
2,828 2,469 25,212
350 350 3,120
2,478 2,118 22,092
3,851 1,728 34,328
176 74 1,569
3,675 1,582 32,758
— 72 —
20,963 20,906 186,859
2,309 1,349 20,588
1,677 722 14,953
436 428 3,889
0 2 0
195 195 1,744
7,254 9,934 64,662
49 124 438
49 96 438
— 27 —
7,205 9,809 64,223
2,794 3,308 24,907
(725) (184) (6,470)
2,068 3,123 18,437
5,136 ¥ 6,685 $ 45,786
2017 2016 2017
(yen) (yen) (U.S.dollars)
31.48 40.91 0.28
903.28 905.22 8.05
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Corporate Data

Management

(As of June 23, 2017)

President

Kichishige Hasegawa

Senior Managing Directors

Shinichiro Miura
Yoshihiro Ishikawa

Managing Directors

Satoshi Nagai
Kiyohiro Naganuma
Shinya Katsuki

Organization

(As of June 23, 2017)

General Meeting of Shareholders

Directors

Yoshihiro Domon
Hiroshi Koya

Yoshitaka Misawa

Eiji Sato
Yumiko Inoue

Haruhiko Tanno (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

Masaki Kakizaki (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Shinichi Nakayama (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Bin Hamada (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

Yasumasa Gomi (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Gisuke Ohara (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

—[ Secretariat ]

—[ General Planning & Coordinations Division ]

Audit & Supervisory Committee]

(

Board of Directors

Governance Committee ]

Executive Committee

Senior Managing Directors
Managing Directors

{ Human Resources & General Administration Division ]

—[ Corporate Business Planning Division ]

—[ Corporate Business Support Division

[ Auditing Division }——

—[ Financial Markets Division

—— Credit Division

—[ Tokyo Liaison Office

—[ Head Office Business Division

]
]
]
—— Operation Administration Division |
]
)
]

—[ Branches

Directory

Headquarters:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Financial Markets Division:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 634 7547
Fax:+81 23 625 7185
S.W.LF.T.: YAMBJPJT

Foreign Exchange Offices:
Head Office
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Yonezawa Branch
1-5, Monto-machi 3-chome, Yonezawa 992-0039,Japan

Phone:+81 238 22 2010

Nagai Branch
11-14,Sakae-machi, Nagai 993-0084,Japan

Phone:+81 238 88 2105

Sagaechuo Branch
2-33, Chuo 1-chome, Sagae 991-0021,Japan

Phone:+81 237 86 1141

Tendo Branch
9-1,Higashihoncho 1-chome, Tendo 994-0026,Japan

Phone:+81 23 653 3355

Shinjo Branch
2-16, Hon-cho, Shinjo 996-0027,Japan
Phone:+81 233 22 2461

Tsuruoka Branch
1-13, Hon-cho 2-chome, Tsuruoka 997-0034,Japan

Phone:+81 235 22 5530

Sakata Branch
10-1, Hon-cho 3-chome, Sakata 998-0043,Japan

Phone:+81 234 22 7222

Tokyo Branch
5-16, Kyobashi 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-0031,Japan

Phone:+81 3 3567 1861

Bank Data: (As of October 1, 2017)
Date of Incorporation: 1896

Authorized Stocks: 59,670,000

Issued Stocks: 34,000,000

Yurihonjo
Akita district: 1 branch

Yamagata
Yamagata district: Head Office s dai
and 69 branches 17 endai

Miyagi district: 6 branches
Saitama
Saitama district: 1 branch

Koriyama

Fukushima district: 1 branch
Utsunomiya

Tochigi district: 1 branch

Tokyo
Tokyo district: 1 branch

(Total: Head Office and 80 branches)
(As of March 31, 2017)

Cherries
Cherries are a special product of Yamagata Prefecture.
Stylized cherries are used as the symbol of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.
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